STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

HON. RALPH KING ANDERSON, III

TRIAL COURT CASE #2013-ALJ-15-0005-AP
APPELLATE CASE #2013-001561

GEORGE M. ADAMS, #181283....., APPELLANT,

V.

S.C. DEPT. OF PPPS,....., RESPONDENT.

APPELLANT'S AMENDMENT BRIEF

GEORGE ADAMS, #181283
LEE CORR. INSTITUTION
KERSHAW N. CELL #2211
990 WISACKY HWY.
BISHOPVILLE, S.C. 29010

TOMMY EVANS, Jr., ESQ.
DPPPS GEN COUNSEL
PO BOX 50666
COLUMBIA, S.C. 29250

1/15, 2014

RECEIVED

JAN 17 2014

SC Court of Appeals

QUESTION PRESENTED

DID THE ADMINISTRATION LAW COURT ERR IN HOLDING THAT APPELLANT'S SENTENCING STATUTE FOR MURDER, READS IN HARMONY WITH SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PROBATION, PAROLE AND PARDON SERVICES AUTHORIZING/DENYING PAROLE ELIGIBILITY?

STATEMENT OF THE AMENDMENT

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PROBATION, PAROLE AND PARDON SERVICES (DPPPS), ISSUED A FINAL DECISION IN A LETTER TO INMATE INDICATING THAT HE WAS INELIGIBLE FOR PAROLE ON HIS PRESENCE SENTENCE FOR LIFE ON MURDER CONVICTION DUE TO A PRIOR CONVICTION FOR A VIOLENT CRIME ON FIRST DEGREE BURGLARY IN 1991. INMATE WAS SENTENCED TO LIFE FOR MURDER CHARGE IN 1994.

INMATE FILED HIS APPEAL WITH THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT JUDGE, WHICH WAS AFFIRMED.

THE INMATE PROCEEDED TO FILE HIS APPEAL IN THE SOUTH CAROLINA COURT OF APPEALS. THE CLERK OF COURT ISSUED AN ORDER DISMISSING THE APPEAL BECAUSE OF FAILURE TO PAY THE FILING FEES. NOVEMBER 08, 2013, THE SOUTH CAROLINA COURT OF APPEALS ISSUED AN ORDER GRANTING THE APPELLANT' MOTION TO REINSTATE THE APPEAL, ORDERING THAT THE APPELLANT DO NOT PAY THE FILING FEES, AND IS ENTITLED TO PROCEED WITHOUT OUT COST.

ARGUMENT

DOES SOUTH CAROLINA CODE OF LAW §24-21-640(1992), §16-1-60(1992) AND §16-3-20(A)(1992) STATUTE ARE NOT READ IN HARMONY TO ONE AND ANOTHER?

WHEN APPELLANT WAS SENTENCED IN 1994 THE MURDER STATUE SENTENCING PHASE UNDER §16-3-20(A)(1992), ENTITLED HIM TO RECEIVE PAROLE. THE DPPPS APPLYING §24-12-640(1992) TO DENY APPELLANT PERMANENTLY PAROLE CREATES A MANIFEST REPUGNANCE BETWEEN THE PROVISIONS ON THE OMNIBUS CRIME BILL SETTING PAROLE ELIGIBILITY LANGUAGE. THE MURDER SENTENCING ~~STATUTE~~ FAILS TO REFLECT TERMS IN IT'S LANGUAGE TO REFER TO THE USE OF HIS PRIOR CONVICTION TO PERMANENTLY DENY ANY PRIVILEGES ON THE SENTENCING WHEN CONVICTED FOR MURDER COMMITTED IN 1992 UNDER §16-3-20(A)(1992). IF THE LEGISLATURE INTENT WAS FOR THE READING OF A PRIVILEGED SENTENCING STATUTES TOGETHER WITH ANOTHER RESTRICTED PRIVILEGED STATUES, THEN THE SENTENCING STATUE LANGUAGE WOULD HAVE BEEN AMENDED TO REFLECT THE OTHER STATUES LANGUAGE CONCERNING THAT SAME SUBJECT MATTER. THE SPECIAL ACT BY THE DPPPS OF PERMANENTLY DENYING APPELLANT PAROLE UNDER THESE CIRCUMSTANCES REQUIRES REPEAL OF DPPPS'S GENERAL RULE, WHICH IN THIS CASE HAS CREATED A MANIFEST REPUGNANCY BETWEEN THE TWO STATUTES UNTIL CORRECTED WITHIN THE PROVISIONS OF ALL ACTS, AND WHERE THE LANGUAGES ARE NOT GENERAL IN IT'S TERMS WHEN APPELLANT WAS SENTENCED, AND NO OTHER PARTICULAR STATUTE DEALING WITH THE SAME SUBJECT IN A PARTICULAR WAY OR PARTICULAR PURPOSE, THE TWO CAN NOT BE READ TOGETHER, AND HARMONIZED, IF POSSIBLE, PREVENTING THE ~~STATUTES~~ TO STAND UNDER §16-1-60(1992). APPELLANT IS A pro se INMATE NOT AN ATTORNEY! APPELLANT STATES THAT THE LANGUAGE IN THE ~~STATUTES~~ SHOULD REFLECT TO ONE ANOTHER IN ORDER FOR HIM TO HAVE HAD KNOWLEDGE CONSTITUTIONALLY, THAT THE OTHER APPLY. PROVISION OF THE 1986 OMNIBUS CRIME SETTING PAROLE ELIGIBILITY LANGUAGE FOR A SECOND VIOLENT OFFENDER IMPLIEDLY REPEALED PROVISION OF SENTENCING UNDER §16-3-20(A)(1992), MAKING A CONVICTED DEFENDANT ON THEORY HE

COMMITTED MURDER INELIGIBLE FOR PAROLE PURSUANT TO §24-21-640(1992). APPELLANT ARGUES THAT THE LOWER COURT ERRED BY CONCLUDING THAT §16-3-20(A)(1992) AND §24-21-640(1992) ~~STATUTES~~ SHOULD BE READ TOGETHER IN HARMONY. APPELLANT POINTS OUT THAT THESE TWO STATUTORY PROVISIONS LANGUAGES DOES NOT REFLECT TO ONE ANOTHER IN HARMONY UNDER THE SETTING OF PAROLE FOR A SECOND VIOLENT OFFENDER. BOTH ~~STATUTES~~ SPEAKS OF THE ELIGIBILITY FOR PAROLE, ONE GRANTING PAROLE AND THE OTHER PREVENTING PAROLE FOR A SECOND VIOLENT OFFENDED. THE DIFFERENT LANGUAGES ON THE AMOUNT OF TIME TO BECOME ELIGIBLE AND NON-ELIGIBLE CREATES A CONFLICT IN SENTENCING. THE LAW CLEARLY PROVIDES THAT IF TWO ~~STATUTES~~ ARE IN CONFLICT, THE LATEST STATUTE PASSED PREVAIL SO AS TO REPEAL THE EARLIER STATUTE TO THE EXTENT OF THE REPUGNANCY. IN YAHNIS COASTAL, INC. V. STROH BREWERY, 386 S.E.2d 64 (1984), BECAUSE §16-3-20(A) IS PENAL IN NATURE, IT'S TO BE CONSTRUED STRICTLY AGAINST THE RESPONDENT AND IN FAVOR OF THE APPELLANT. SINCE THE OMNIBUS CRIME BILL LANGUAGE IS NOT FOUND UNDER THE SENTENCING ~~STATUTE~~ §16-3-20(A)(1992) WHEN APPELLANT WAS SENTENCED, THIS COURT CANNOT CONCLUDE THAT THE SENTENCING SECTION FOR PAROLE ON THE MINIMUM OF TWENTY (20) YEARS LIFE WITH THE POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE WAS CONSTITUTIONALLY IMPLICITLY REPEALED BY §24-21-640. IF THE LEGISLATURE HAD WANTED TO EXCLUDE PERMANENTLY ANY POSSIBLE CHANCE OF PAROLE FOR A SECOND VIOLENT OFFENDER UNDER THE SENTENCING ~~STATUTE~~ IN 1994, IT WOULD HAVE DONE SO BY CLARIFYING THE LANGUAGE OF THE PROVISION ON PAROLE. §16-1-60 OMNIBUS CRIME BILL LANGUAGE ON SETTING PAROLE ELIGIBILITY STATES:

"THE ONLY EXCEPTION TO THE JUNE 3, 1986 (PRIOR VIOLENT CRIME)(PRESENT VIOLENT OFFENSE) IS IF AN INMATE COMMITTED A VIOLENT CONVICTIONS THAT CAN BE USED TO SCREEN FOR SUBSEQUENT VIOLENT OFFENDER STATUS ARE PREVIOUS OFFENSES THAT WERE COMMITTED ON OR AFTER JUNE 3, 1986. VIOLENT OFFENSES THAT OCCURRED BEFORE JUNE 3, 1986 CANNOT BE CONSIDERED."

"AFTER JUNE 3, 1986, IF AN INMATE COMMITTED TWO SEPARATE OFFENSES AND WAS SENTENCED MORE THAN 24 HOURS APART FOR THE SEPARATE OFFENSES, THEY ARE SUBSEQUENT VIOLENT OFFENDERS."

THIS COURT HAS STATED IN THE PAST IN LEWIS V. GADDY, 173 S.E.2d 376, 378 (1970)(IT IS, OF COURSE, WELL SETTLED THAT REPEAL BY IMPLICATION IS NOT FAVORED, AND A LAW SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS IMPLIED REPEALING A PRIOR LAW UNLESS NO OTHER REASONABLE CONSTRUCTION CAN BE APPLIED).IN THIS INSTANCE, §16-3-20(A) CAN SIMPLY OR COULD HAVE BEEN AMENDED TO REFLECT THE LANGUAGE OF 1986 OMNIBUS CRIME BILL SETTING OF PAROLE FOR FIRST OR SECOND VIOLENT OFFENDERS SENTENCING. THIS COURT HAS PROPERLY STATED THE RULE THAT REPEAL BY IMPLICATION IS NOT FAVORED AND CAN BE FOUND ONLY WHERE NO REASONABLE CONSTRUCTION CAN BE GIVEN, ESPECIALLY WHEN DEALING WITH TWO TOTALLY DIFFERENT STATUTES. IN BUSBY V. STATE FARM MUT. AUTO INS. CO., 312 S.E.2d 716, 719 (Ct. App. 1984): THIS COURT HAS STATED THE FOLLOWING: "IT IS WELL ESTABLISHED IN THIS STATE THAT A STATUTE OF A SPECIFIC NATURE ARE NOT TO BE CONSIDERED AS REPEAL IN WHOLE OR IN PART BE A LATER GENERAL STATUTE UNLESS THERE IS A DIRECT REFERENCE TO THE FORMER ~~STATUTES~~ OR THE INTENT OF THE LEGISLATURE TO DO SO IS EXPLICITLY IMPLIED THEREIN.

THE HARMONIOUS READING OF THE ~~STATUTES~~ FROM APPELLANT'S RESEARCH REVEALED THAT OTHER ~~STATUTES~~ HAVE BEEN PASSED SINCE THE OMNIBUS CRIME BILL WHICH CONTAINS SPECIFIC PAROLE ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR THE VIOLATION OF CERTAIN OTHER VIOLENT CRIMES AS DEFINED BY §16-1-60. §16-3-20(A)(1992) WHICH WAS ENACTED AFTER THE OMNIBUS CRIME BILL, CONCERNS THE CRIME OF MURDER SENTENCING PROVISION IN 1994 WHEN THE APPELLANT WAS SENTENCED, BUT §16-3-20(A)(1992) SENTENCING ~~STATUTE~~ IN 1994 ALLOWED PAROLE FOR THOSE WHO WERE CONVICTED OF MURDER, WHO WERE NOT SENTENCED TO DEATH, TO BE ELIGIBLE FOR PAROLE AFTER TWENTY (20)YEARS OF IMPRISONMENT, UNLESS THERE WERE AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES IN WHICH CASE THE CONVICT WOULD NOT BE PAROLE ELIGIBLE UNTIL HE HAD SERVED THIRTY (30)YEARS. EVEN THOUGH §16-1-60 AND §24-21-640 WERE BOTH IN EXISTENCE AT THE TIME APPELLANT WAS SENTENCED. §16-3-20(A)(1992) MURDER SENTENCING ~~STATUTE~~ DEFINATION CONCERNING ANY POSSIBLE EXCEPTION OF PAROLE ELIGIBILITY IS READ IN ISOLATION FROM S.C. CODE ANN. §24-21-640(1992), BECAUSE THE LEGISLATURE INTENT FOR THE READING OF §16-3-20(A)(1992) SENTENCING STATUTE

TOGETHER WITH §24-21-640, AUTHORIZING DPPPS TO SEND NOTICE AFTER SERVICE OF TWENTY (20) ~~YEARS PERMANENTLY~~ DENYING ELIGIBILITY ON PAROLE, LANGUAGE DOES NOT REFLECT THE LOSS OF LIBERTY INTEREST TO PAROLE, BECAUSE OF THE PRIOR USE OF A VIOLENT CRIME, (BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE §16-11-311). SIMPLY, THE LANGUAGE IN §16-3-20(A)(1992), SENTENCING STATUTE WOULD HAVE BEEN CHANGED GIVEN APPELLANT CONSTITUTIONALLY PROPER NOTICE OF DPPPS USE OF THE PRIOR VIOLENT CRIME TO RESTRICT THE PAROLE PRIVILEGE IN SENTENCING PURSUANT TO §24-21-640(1992). AS §16-1-60 OMNIBUS CRIME BILL REFLECTS §16-11-311 AS VIOLENT. NOT WAITING TWENTY (20) YEARS LATER AFTER IMPRISONMENT TO DISCOVER APPELLANT'S SENTENCE NEEDS TO BE RESTRUCTURED. DPPPS DID NOT KNOW ABOUT THE READING TOGETHER APPELLANT'S SENTENCING STATUTE PRIVILEGE TO PAROLE, UNTIL TWENTY (20) YEARS LATER, AFTER BEING SENTENCED. SO HOW WOULD APPELLANT AS A PRO SE LITIGANT PRISONER WOULD HAVE KNOWN THAT BOTH ~~STATUTES~~ WERE TO BE READ TOGETHER WHEN THERE IS A REPUGNANCY BETWEEN THE TWO STATUTES, (THAT THE TRIAL COURT), DID NOT NOTICE. APPELLANT WAS SCHEDULED TO BE ELIGIBLE FOR PAROLE FEBRUARY 8, 2013, DECEMBER 21, 2013, APPELLANT WAS INTERVIEWED BY SCDPPPS'S OFFICE. DECEMBER 21, 2013, APPELLANT WAS SERVED A NOTICE ON NON-ELIGIBILITY FOR PAROLE. FEBRUARY 5, 2013, APPELLANT WAS THEN MADE AWARE BY DPPPS THAT USE OF THE PRIOR CONVICTION FOR A VIOLENT OFFENSE, REVIEWED WITH THE PRESENCE VIOLENT OFFENSE DENIES HIM ELIGIBILITY ON SENTENCING PRIVILEGE TO PAROLE, AFTER SERVING TWENTY (20) YEARS ON A MANDATORY/MINIMUM LIFE SENTENCE UNDER A MORE SPECIFIC ~~STATUTE~~ WHICH ADDRESSED AND GRANTS PAROLE. SUCH STATUTES IS TO BE GIVEN FULL EFFECT AS LONG AS IT DOES NOT EXPRESSLY CONFLICT WITH IT IS IRRECONCILABLE. PALMETTONET V. SOUTH CAROLINA TAX COM.N., 456 S.E.2d 385 (S.C. 1995). SO IF THE APPELLANT'S PRIOR CONVICTION IN 1991 TRIAL PLEA RECORDS DOES NOT CONSIST OF THE SOLICITOR'S TESTIMONY CONCERNING THE TRIGGERING OF THE OMNIBUS CRIME BILL SETTING PAROLE ELIGIBILITY LANGUAGE, AND ESTABLISHED IN APPELLANT'S 1994 JURY TRIAL CONVICTION, THEN HOW WAS §24-21-640 CONSTITUTIONALLY TRIGGERED TO OVERRIDE §16-3-20(A)(1992) SENTENCING STATUTE WHICH GRANTED PAROLE?

APPELLANT'S MAIN ARGUMENT IS!

THE MURDER STATUTE §16-3-20(A)(1992) SENTENCING PHRASE FOR UNE PRIVILEGE OF PAROLE IS DENIED BY THE MANIFEST REPUGNANCY ON AUTHORIZING DPPPS TO REVIEW APPELLANT'S PRIOR VIOLENT CONVICTION UNDER §24-21-640, AND §16-1-60, BECAUSE §24-21-640(1992) LANGUAGE ON THE USE OF A PRIOR VIOLENT CONVICTION, WHEN SENTENCED FOR A PRESENCE VIOLENT CRIME. TO REFLECT ITS TERM ON THE PRIVILEGE LOSS WHEN SENTENCED UNDER §16-3-20(A)(1992) CONSTRUCTION. NOR DOES §16-3-20(A)(1992), SECTION ON PAROLE REFLECT THE LANGUAGE OR TERMS OF PERMANENT DENIAL OF PAROLE GENERAL LAW IN §24-21-640(1992). THE SPECIAL ACT COMMITTED BY DPPPS OF PERMANENTLY DEPRIVING THE APPELLANT OF PAROLE UNDER THESE CIRCUMSTANCES REQUIRE REPEAL OF DPPPS GENERAL RULE WHICH CREATES A MANIFEST REPUGNANCY BETWEEN ALL THREE PROVISIONS OF THE ACTS, AND WHERE THE LANGUAGES ARE NOT GENERAL IN IT'S TERMS WHEN APPELLANT WAS SENTENCED, AND NO OTHER PARTICULAR STATUE DEALING WITH THE SAME SUBJECT IN A PARTICULAR WAY OR PARTICULAR PURPOSE, THE TWO CAN NOT BE READ TOGETHER, AND HARMONIZED, IF POSSIBLE, PREVENTING §16-3-20(A)(1992); §24-21-640(1992) AND §16-1-60 READING TOGETHER STAND AS APPLICABLE IN THIS CASE.

APPELLANT IS pro se LITIGANT NOT AN ATTORNEY. HUGHES V. ROWE, 101 S.Ct. 173 (1973); ESTELL V. GAMBLE, 97 S.Ct. 285 (1976). APPELLANT STATES THAT THE LANGUAGES IN THE STATUTES SHOULD REFLECT TO ONE ANOTHER IN ORDER FOR A CLEAR UNDERSTANDING TO BE READ BY A DEFENDANT, TO HAVE PROPER KNOWLEDGE TO REFER TO THE OTHER. THEREFORE, THE SENTENCING COURT CORRECTLY APPLIED THE INTENT OF THE LEGISLATURE WHEN SENTENCING APPELLANT IN 1994 FOR THE CRIME COMMITTED ON JUNE 17, 1992. EVEN IF THIS COURT WAS TO REPEAL THE STATUTES ARE LANGUAGES AT THIS POINT BY IMPLICATION, WHICH IS NOT FAVORED, THE STATUTES ARE INCAPABLE OF ANY REASONABLE RECONCILEMENT.

IN CONSTRUING THESE STATUTE STATUTORY LANGUAGE, THE MUST BE AS A WHOLE, AND SECTIONS WHICH ARE PART OF THE SAME GENERAL STATUTORY LAW MUST BE CONSTRUED TOGETHER AND EACH ONE GIVEN EFFECT, IF IT CAN BE DONE BY ANY REASONABLE CONSTRUCTION MADE PRIOR TO SENTENCING THE APPELLANT. THIS COURT IS NOW FACED WITH THE DECISION ON REVIEW TO DETERMINE IF, §16-3-20(A)(1992) MURDER STATUTE AND §24-21-640 (1992) PAROLE STATUTE USES A WORD HAVING A WELL-RECOGNIZED MEANING IN LAW, THE PRESUMPTION IS THAT THE LEGISLATURE INTENDED TO USE THE WORD IN THAT SENSE. SMALLE V. WEED, 360 S.E.2d 531 (S.C. App. 1987). WHEREFORE, IN THIS CASE, REMAND BY THIS COURT IS NEEDED TO CONSIDER THE ISSUE OF WHETHER S.C. CODE ANN. §16-3-20 (A)(1992) AND §24-21-640 (1992) DEPRIVED THE TRIAL COURT OF SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION.

CONCLUSION

FOR THE REASONS STATED IN APPELLANT'S ORIGINAL AND AMENDEMENT BRIEFS, APPELLANT ASK THIS COURT TO GRANT THIS APPEAL.

1/15, 2014