STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FOR THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE DIVISION
The Honorable Ralph King Anderson, III, Chief Administrative Law Judge
Appellate Case Number 2013-001561

GEORGE M. ADAMS, #181283

.....APPELLANT

v.

RECEIVED
JUN 17 2014
SC Court of Appeals

S.C. DEPARTMENT OF PROBATION, PAROLE AND
PARDON SERVICES,RESPONDENT

RESPONDENT'S FINAL BRIEF

Tommy Evans, Jr.
Assistant General Counsel

**South Carolina Department of Probation,
Parole and Pardon Services
P.O. Box 50666
Columbia, South Carolina 29250**

ATTORNEY FOR THE RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF ISSUE ON APPEAL

- 1. Did the lower court err in determining that the Respondent was correct in denying the Appellant parole eligibility due to the commission of a subsequent violent offense?**
- 2. Did the Appellant have a preexisting expectation of parole eligibility that was violated in the denial of his parole eligibility?**
- 3. Did the Respondent unlawfully restructure the statute that the Appellant was initially convicted of committing?**

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On June 17, 1992, in Columbia, South Carolina, the Appellant along with his co-defendants James Brown and Rosena Farmer decided to rob Johnny's grocery, a small grocery store owned by Mildred and Joe Collins. The Appellant and Mr. Brown entered the store and approached the front counter. At the counter stood Mrs. Collins, the Defendant's requested beer and cigarettes, and was informed that those items were not sold in the store. Then Co-defendant Brown pointed a hand gun at Mrs. Collins and demanded money. When this occurred Mr. Collins entered from a back room grabbed Mr. Brown, and a scuffle ensued where Mr. Collins was shot. While Mr. Collins lie on the floor his wallet was stolen by Mr. Brown. Both defendants immediately exited the store, and Mr. Collins later died as a result of his gunshot wound.

The authorities were immediately contacted and later apprehended all three defendants. Upon lawfully being advised of his Miranda rights, the Appellant gave the authorities a full confession. Although the Appellant was not the actual shooter he was charged with the offense of murder, and armed robbery. On June 23, 1994, the Appellant appeared before a jury of his peers and was convicted of both offenses. He was sentenced by the Honorable Henry L. McKellar to a term of imprisonment for the remainder of his natural life for the offense of murder, and twenty-five (25) years for armed robbery.¹(R.p.1).

At the time the Appellant committed this offense South Carolina law allowed a person serving a sentence for murder parole eligibility upon the service of twenty (20) years. Prior to the arrival of his parole eligibility date, the Respondent conducted a mandatory investigation to determine if he can actually appear before the Parole Board. During the course of this investigation the Respondent discovered that the Appellant was previously convicted on September 17, 1991,

¹ Co-Defendant James Brown was convicted on March 21, 1994 and received a life sentence.

of the offense of burglary in the first degree. (burglary 1st). (R.p.2). The burglary 1st and murder offense are both classified as violent.² Since he was convicted of a prior classified violent offense the Department determined he is not eligible for parole.

On December 21, 2012, the Appellant was informed that due to his prior conviction of a violent offense he is not eligible for parole. (R.p.4). The Appellant was also informed the he can appeal the Respondent's decision to the Administrative Law Court. Upon receiving this notice of the denial the Appellant filed a notice of appeal on January 21, 2013. Within this appeal the Appellant alleged that the Respondent violated ex post facto by following the law on the date when he was sentenced and not the date when he committed the offense. The Appellant also alleged that his denial of parole was in violation of due process.

Upon reviewing briefs submitted by each party, the Honorable Ralph K. Anderson, III, Chief Administrative Law Judge issued an order. Within this order Judge Anderson found that the denial of parole eligibility followed the law that existed at the time the Appellant committed the offense; and, since he was never eligible for parole there never exist no denial of due process. Judge Anderson decided to affirm the decision of the Respondent.

Upon receipt of this order the Appellant filed a notice of appeal before this Court. In this appeal the Appellant raises the previous allegations addressed by the ALC. The Respondent will argue that the ALC was correct in affirming the decision to deny parole eligibility. The Respondent's initial brief supporting their arguments follows.

² For purposes of definition under South Carolina law, a violent crime includes the offenses of murder (Section 16-3-10); and, burglary in the first degree (Section 16-11-311). S.C. Code Ann. §16-1-60(Supp. 1986).

ARGUMENTS

1. The Appellant was never eligible for parole due to a prior conviction of a crime classified as violent, so the ALC was correct in affirming the decision of the Appellant.

The Appellant argues that the Respondent was not authorized to review his sentencing date in the determination of his parole ineligibility. This assertion is without merit. The Appellant is not, and has never been eligible for parole. This is due to the terms found in Section 24-21-640 of the South Carolina Code of Laws which state:

The [parole] board must not grant, nor is parole authorized to any prisoner serving a sentence for a second or subsequent conviction, following a separate sentencing for a prior conviction for violent crimes as defined in Section 16-1-60.

S.C. Code Ann. §24-21-640 (Supp. 2013).

The statute was part of the Omnibus Criminal Justice Improvement Act of 1986. Therefore, in determining whether an offender is a subsequent violent offender, the subsequent crime must have been committed after the effective date of the statute, June 3, 1986. The prior crime can be committed at any time including after the offense date of the subsequent crime because the focus is on the date of the sentencing not the date of the commission of the subsequent crime.

There does exist exceptions, if the subsequent crime was committed between January 1, 1994, and January 12, 1995, the prior crime must have been classified as violent at the time the subsequent crime was committed.³ With the exception of this small window of time, there exist no ex post facto violation where an inmate is treated as a subsequent violent offender based in part on a prior conviction which was not defined as violent on the date the prior crime was committed. Sullivan v. State, 331 S.C. 479, 504 S.E.2d 110 (1998); see also, Philips v. State, 331 S.C. 482,

³ For that brief period the General Assembly change the law to reflect this, that law was change back to its original state the next year.

504 S.E.2d 111 (1998). This Court also decided that a prior violent offense committed in another state does not preclude a prisoner from being eligible for parole. See, State v. Hinton, 357 S.C. 327, 592 S.E.2d 335 (Ct. App. 2005).

The Appellant is currently serving a sentence for murder which was committed on June 17, 1992. At the time he committed this offense the Appellant had a previous conviction for burglary 1st committed on March 8, 1991. Both convictions occurred in South Carolina and were classified as violent when they were committed, there exist no violation of ex post facto. For a law to present an ex post facto violation it must: **(1) be retrospective and apply to events taking place prior to the enactment;** and (2) work to disadvantage the offender. State v. Bryant, 382 S.C. 505, 675 S.E.2d 816 (Ct. App. 2009).

Both offenses occurred in South Carolina and does not fall into the above listed dates to be considered ex post facto. Since they are both classified as violent, pursuant to the language of the statute the Appellant is not eligible for parole. The words of the statute must be given their plain and ordinary meaning without resorting to the subtle or forced construction to limit or expand the statute's operation. Municipal Association of South Carolina v. AT&T Communications of the Southern States, 361 S.C. 576, 606 S.E.2d 468 (2004).

The Appellant also argues that his denial of parole eligibility was in violation of due process. In the United States Supreme Court decision of Morrissey v. Brewer, 408 U.S. 471, 92 S.Ct. 2593 (1972), the Court acknowledged that a person facing a revocation of parole has minimal due process rights. A distinction between a person currently on parole and a person seeking parole was made in the case of Greenholtz v. Inmate of the Nebraska Penal and Correctional Complex, 442 U.S. 1, 99 S.Ct. 2100 (1979)⁴ In Greenholtz, the Supreme Court determined that there exist

⁴ There is a crucial distinction between being denied a conditional liberty one has, as in parole and being denied a conditional liberty that one desires. The parolees in Morrissey (and probationers in Gagnon) were at liberty and as

no conditional or inherent right of a convicted person to be conditionally released before the expiration of a valid sentence. Greenholtz, at 2104. The Respondent argues that since the Appellant was never eligible for parole due to his prior convictions, he did not have the right to due process. If the Court feels he had a liberty interest in being allowed to appear before the Board, thereby, due process rights, there exist no denial of due process. The Appellant's denial of parole eligibility was reviewed by an impartial Court, pursuant to Furtick v. S.C. Dept. of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services, 352 S.C. 594, 576 S.E.2d 146 (2003). The lower Court properly decided that the denial of parole eligibility was valid pursuant to South Carolina law, and affirmed the decision of the Parole Board.

2. The Appellant should not have a preexisting expectation of parole eligibility.

The Appellant argues that he is being denied parole eligibility that was a part of his sentence.

When the Appellant was initially convicted the murder statute stated:

A person who is convicted of or pleads guilty to murder must be punished by death or by imprisonment for life and is not eligible for parole until the service of twenty years.

S.C. Code Ann. §16-3-20(A)(Supp. 1986)

However, according to South Carolina law a person is not eligible for parole if he is serving a second violent conviction upon the conviction of a subsequent offense classified as violent. The ALC was correct in deciding that these statutes work in harmony. Section 16-3-20 applies to those convicted of murder with no prior violent convictions. If a person convicted of murder has a prior offense that is classified violent pursuant to Section 16-1-60; then, Section 24-21-640 applies, and that person will not be eligible for parole. If the Appellant had no prior conviction of a violent

such could "be gainfully employed and [were] free to be with family and friends and to form other enduring attachments of normal life." 408 U.S. at 482, 92 S.Ct. at 2600. The inmates here, on the other hand, are confined and thus subject to all of the necessary restraints that inhere in a prison. Greenholtz, at 2015.

offense he would be allowed to appear before the Board; however, due to his prior conviction of a classified violent offense, he never was eligible for parole.

The Appellant argues that when he was first incarcerated he was given a projected parole eligibility date, and the parole examiner informed him of a scheduled parole hearing date. These were projected dates, were never confirmed. Nothing is confirmed until the completion of the mandatory pre-parole examination. This investigation must be completed prior to a person appearing before the Parole Board. After reviewing the prior record of the inmate, if there exist a prior conviction of a classified violent offense by law that inmate is not eligible for parole.

The Appellant was not denied any Constitutional rights and the Respondent proved to the ALC that he had a prior conviction of a violent offense. Both convictions were placed in the record on appeal given to the ALC. He made an informed decision that the denial of parole eligibility was pursuant to statute and lawful; therefore, the decision of the ALC should be affirmed.

3. The Respondent did not restructure the sentence of the Appellant.

The Appellant is of the opinion that due to him not being eligible for parole the Department restructured the murder statute. The murder statute existing at the time the Appellant committed the offense allowed parole eligibility upon the service of twenty (20) years. Since the Appellant had a prior crime classified as violent it denied his parole eligibility. This statute existed when he committed this offense; therefore, the Appellant is not eligible for parole.

The Appellant argues that the Respondent failed to follow the sentencing of the Court at the time of his conviction. The sentencing Judge has no authority to determine parole eligibility. That determination is made by the Respondent, abiding with the statute existing at the time the crime was committed. Section 24-21-640 specifically provides for the Board to consider the complete record of a prisoner and delegates to the Board the responsibility of determining if and when a

prisoner meets the prerequisites of parole eligibility. State v. McKay, 300 S.C. 113, 386 S.E.2d 623 (1989). The Board followed the statute in making the determination of the denial of the Appellant's parole. The statute clearly states that if an inmate with a prior conviction of a violent offense, and currently serving a sentence for violent crime, he would not be eligible for parole. This determination cannot be changed by the Courts. The question of parole eligibility is separate and independent from the court's authority to sentence an offender. The final judgment of the court in a criminal case is the sentence. Id., at 623.

Both crimes were committed after the effective date of the statute. Since it was proven that the Appellant committed a burglary 1st and then subsequently committed an offense of murder, both classified as violent, pursuant to statute he is not eligible for parole. It is clear the Respondent followed South Carolina law as it existed at the time the crime was committed. The decision of the ALC affirming the denial of parole was proper and should be affirmed by this honorable Court.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing reasons the Respondent respectfully requests that the final decision of the ALC dismissing this appeal be affirmed.